



PIKES PEAK

SCHOOL OF EXPEDITIONARY LEARNING

Pikes Peak School of Expeditionary Learning Bylaws

Revised September 2017

11925 Antler's Ridge Dr, Falcon, CO 80831

Vision:

Our vision is to be a community that actively cultivates character in a challenging and engaging learning environment.

Mission:

Pikes Peak School of Expeditionary Learning's mission is to develop motivated, independently thinking individuals who demonstrate strong character, academic achievement, social confidence and service to the community by utilizing the Expeditionary Learning Model.

Article I - Offices

Section 1.1 **Principal Office** The principal office of the corporation shall be located within the borders of Falcon District 49. The corporation may have such other offices within Colorado as the Board of Directors may designate or as the business of the corporation may require from time to time.

Section 1.2 **Registered Office** The registered office of the corporation required by the laws of the State of Colorado to be maintained in Colorado may be, but need not be, identical to the address of the principal office, and the address of the registered office may be changed from time to time by the Board of Directors.

Article II - Members

Section 2.1 **Members** Each parent or legal guardian of a child enrolled at the Pikes Peak School of Expeditionary Learning shall be a member of the school. Such membership shall terminate when the child ceases to be enrolled at the school for any reason.

Section 2.2 **Membership Meeting** The Board of Directors shall provide, by resolution, from time to time, for a meeting of the membership of the school. In addition, at least one membership meeting must be called in the month of October for the purpose of electing directors to the board.

Article III - Board of Directors

Section 3.1 **General Composition** The Board of Directors of Pikes Peak School of Expeditionary Learning shall be a representative body elected by the eligible voters. Attempts should be made to have at least one member of the community at large with no children enrolled at the Pikes Peak School of Expeditionary Learning on the Board of Directors.

Section 3.2 **General Powers** The Board of Directors may exercise for the Pikes Peak School of Expeditionary Learning all powers, authority and duties not reserved to the eligible voters, as are provided by, or delegated to, the



PIKES PEAK

SCHOOL OF EXPEDITIONARY LEARNING

Pikes Peak School of Expeditionary Learning by State and Federal law, the Contract with District 49, and these bylaws.

Section 3.3 Methods The Board of Directors shall act only via resolution adopted by a majority vote at regular or special meeting where a quorum of board members is present. Such resolutions may authorize individuals or groups of individuals, whether board members or not, to take action, negotiate on behalf of, or represent the school, and such designees may legitimately transfer their authority to others at the Board of Director's discretion. .

Section 3.4 Responsibilities The Board of Directors shall organize and manage itself so as to fulfill its duties to the school. The Board of Directors shall plan, develop, and establish policy and assess the performance of the School. The Board of Directors shall oversee the school's financial condition and the physical plant. The Board of Directors shall have the sole and absolute authority to select and remove the administrative body of the school. Each member shall subscribe to the Code of Conduct as adopted by the Board of Directors.

Section 3.5 Number, Tenure and Qualifications The number of directors of the corporation shall consist of five individuals. Each director's term shall be three years, with the exception of the initiating board members. Director's terms begin on the day of the first board meeting following elections for the Board of Directors. Directors' terms end on the day of the first board meeting following elections for the Board of Directors, three years later. Each director, with the exception of initiating board members, shall be elected as prescribed by Article IV.

Section 3.6 [Historical] Transition from Initiating Board of Directors to Regular Board of Directors. Initiating Board of Directors serve from the founding of the board until a replacement is elected. For the purposes of the transition, three board members will serve through May, 2002 and four will serve though May, 2003. At that time, regular elections shall take place as prescribed in Article IV of previous revisions to these bylaws.

Section 3.7 Compensation Members of the Board of Directors shall not receive compensation for their services as members of the Board of Directors.

Section 3.8 Resignations Any director may resign at any time by giving written notice to all standing members of the Board of Directors. Such resignation shall take effect as of the next meeting following the date of resignation. The acceptance of such resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective. If the President of the Board of Directors were resigning, he or she should give written notice to any other officer of the Board of Directors.

Section 3.9 Removal Any director may be removed at any time, with or without cause, by a two-thirds majority vote of the Board of Directors then in office, cast at a meeting of the Board of Directors called for that purpose. Directors shall be removed in the manner provide by the Colorado Nonprofit Corporation Act.

Section 3.10 Conflict of Interest In order to avoid conflicts of interest, the Board of Directors should avoid contracting with the Directors, unless there is no compensation for the Director or the Director's interest, other than reimbursement for expenses incurred. If such contracting is in the best interest of the school, the Board must attempt to obtain an alternative contractor at a lower rate than offered by the board member. Should no alternative exist, then the board member may contract with the school.



PIKES PEAK

SCHOOL OF EXPEDITIONARY LEARNING

Directors may donate their time and/or money, but not otherwise be in a financial relationship with the Pikes Peak School of Expeditionary Learning.

Upon taking office, Directors shall disclose any known or potential conflicts of interest in writing to the Board of Directors. Whether or not a particular conflict of interest has been disclosed or not, Directors shall not vote on decisions when such a conflict arises, nor shall the Directors participate in the discussion of the decision.

The written disclosure shall be made a permanent record of the Pikes Peak School of Expeditionary Learning's School Accountability and Advisory Committee.

Article IV - Elections

Section 4.1 Procedures Commencing in 2005, elections of the Board of Directors shall be held annually in October, on a date selected by the School Accountability and Advisory Committee (SAAC) and posted to all eligible voters at least four weeks in advance. Elections shall be conducted using written secret ballots according to the procedures established and published by the Board of Directors. Oversight of the election process and vote tally shall be the responsibility of the SAAC. Upon approval of these bylaws, an election for two member of the Board of Directors shall be held in December 2004, on a date selected by the Board of Directors and posted to all the eligible voters at least three weeks in advance.

Section 4.2 Eligible Voters Eligible voters shall include the parents of children currently attending the school. Voting, however, shall be limited to one vote per family regardless of the number of parents or the number of children attending the school. If more than one vote is cast by a particular family, then all votes for that family shall be null and void. Votes must be cast by one of the parents or legal guardians of the family.

Section 4.3 Electioneering Prohibited The use of any part of the school building or its grounds for electioneering or political purposes shall be restricted to:

- Use of the school facilities for a statutorily authorized voting location
- The solicitation of a petition for the nomination of an individual as a candidate for Board of Directors, as indicated by section 4.5
- The solicitation of a petition with the aim of amending the bylaws of the Pikes Peak School of Expeditionary Learning, as provided for in Article 13.
- Use of the school facilities as a voting location for the elections authorized by the Board of Directors of the Pikes Peak School of Expeditionary Learning.
- Educational activities such as mock conventions, caucuses, or student elections.

Such restrictions shall not be used to limit the activities of other organizations utilizing the facilities outside of school hours.

Section 4.4. Vacancies The School Accountability and Advisory Committee shall solicit and recommend, by majority vote, to the Board of Directors, candidates to fill a vacancy on the Board of Directors. A candidate shall be appointed as a director by a majority vote of the Board of Directors then in office, and shall complete the term of



PIKES PEAK

SCHOOL OF EXPEDITIONARY LEARNING

the outgoing director. In the event that no candidate is selected by the Board of Directors, the process shall be repeated until the vacancy is filled.

Section 4.5 Candidates for the Board of Directors Candidates for the Board of Directors may be nominated either by the School Accountability and Advisory Committee or by a valid nomination petition. To be valid, a nomination petition should be signed by either a group or member representing at least 10% of the children enrolled at the Pikes Peak School of Expeditionary Learning. For the purposes of this calculation, all students from preschool through 8th grade are counted equally and more than one legal guardian from the same family may count towards the signature requirement. Nominated candidates shall go through an interview process by the School Accountability and Advisory Committee to decide which nominees are put on the ballot during elections by majority vote of the Committee.

Article V - Meetings of the Board of Directors

Section 5.1 Meetings The Board of Directors shall meet approximately 10 times a year. The dates will be listed on an annual calendar that publicly posted. Additional or special meetings may be called by the President or upon the request of one third or more of the directors. The board can vote to change meeting dates as needed.

Section 5.2 Rules of Order The Board of Directors may, at its discretion, adopt any rule to facilitate the orderly conduct of the meeting, upon a quorum vote of approval by the board. In the absence of any adopted rule, the Board of Directors shall use Robert's Rules of Order as the parliamentary authority.

Section 5.3 Attendance Notwithstanding Section 3.9 concerning removal from the Board of Directors, attendance at the Board of Directors' meetings is mandatory. A director may be immediately removed from the Board of Directors should he or she fail to attend two consecutive regular meetings without prior notification to the Secretary of the Board of Directors or to the President of the Board of Directors.

Section 5.4 Notices Whereas the provisions of the Colorado Sunshine Act of 1972, CRS 24-6-401 et. Seq., as amended by the Colorado General Assembly on April 29, 1991, require that full and timely notice to the public be given of the meetings of the Board of Directors; and whereas, in addition to any other means of giving full and timely notice, the Act provided that the Board of Directors shall be deemed to have given the requisite notice if the notice of the meeting is posted in a designated public place within the boundaries of the School District no less than twenty-four (24) hours prior to the meeting.

The Secretary of the Board of Directors or the Secretary Designee shall publish that notice, including the specific agenda information where possible, of any meetings of the Board of Directors at which time adoption of any proposed policy, position, resolution, rule, regulation, or formal action occurs or at which a majority or quorum of the Board of Directors is expected to be in attendance, twenty-four (24) hours in advance .

This posting of such notice to the public of such meetings and the location for the posting shall not be changed except by resolution of the Board of Directors.



PIKES PEAK

SCHOOL OF EXPEDITIONARY LEARNING

Section 5.5 Quorum and Vote No business may be conducted unless a quorum is present. A quorum shall consist of a simple majority (more than half) of the members serving on the Board.

Section 5.6 Manner of Acting The act of a majority of the Board of Directors present at a Board of Directors meeting at which a quorum is present shall be an act of the Board of Directors unless otherwise stated in these Bylaws.

Section 5.7 Executive Session All regular and special meetings of the Board of Directors shall be open to the public, except that, upon the affirmative vote of the quorum present, an executive session may be held to discuss any one or more of the following unless prohibited by law:

- (§24-6-402(4)(a), C.R.S.), the purchase, acquisition, lease, transfer, or sale of any real, personal, or other property interest;
- (§24-6-402(4)(b), C.R.S.), conferences with an attorney for the public entity for the purposes of receiving legal advice on specific legal questions;
- (§24-6-402(4)(c), C.R.S.), matters required to be kept confidential by federal or state law or rules and regulations;
- (§24-6-402(4)(d), C.R.S.), specialized details of security arrangements or investigations;
- (§24-6-402(4)(e), C.R.S.), developing strategy for negotiations, instructing negotiators, and determining positions relative to matters that may be subject to negotiations;
- (§24-6-402(4)(f), C.R.S.), personnel matters (with exceptions and as applied in the discussion below); and
- (§24-6-402(4)(g), C.R.S.), consideration of any documents protected by the mandatory nondisclosure provisions of the Open Records Act.

The motion requesting the executive session shall state the nature of the matter to be discussed. Only those persons invited by the Board of Directors may be present during the executive session. The Board of Directors shall not make final policy decisions, nor shall any resolution, rule regulation, or formal action or any action approving a contract or calling for the payment of money be adopted or approved at any session which is closed to the general public. Matters discussed during the executive sessions shall remain confidential among those attending. The Secretary of the Board of Directors shall maintain minutes of all executive sessions according to current Colorado statutes.

Article VI - Officers of the Board of Directors

Section 6.1 Officers The Officers of the Board of Directors, and thus of the Corporation, shall consist of President, Vice President, Secretary and Treasurer. The officers shall hold office until their successors are elected or until their earlier deaths, resignations, removal or completion of their current term. An officer may temporarily designate another board member to carry out their duties at the sole discretion of the officer.

Section 6.1.1 Vacancies in Officer Positions When an officer's position becomes vacant, the Board of Directors shall appoint, by majority vote, a member of the Board to be that officer.



PIKES PEAK

SCHOOL OF EXPEDITIONARY LEARNING

Section 6.1.2 **Terms of Officers** the term of an officer is for the entire calendar year, beginning in November and ending the day of the first board meeting following elections for the Board of Directors., except as provided for by Sections 6.1.1, 6.1.3 and 6.1.4.

Section 6.1.3 **Removal of Officer** An officer of the Board of Directors may be removed from office, with or without cause, by a majority vote of the directors then in office at a regular or special meeting. The Board of Directors may remove an officer from office without being removed from the Board of Directors

Section 6.1.4 **Resignation of Officer** An officer may resign at any time as an officer and maintain a seat on the Board of Directors if he or she so chooses

Section 6.2 **President** The President shall preside at the meeting of the Board of Directors and shall ensure that all actions and resolutions of the board are carried out. The President shall also serve as Chair of the Board of Directors and as the Chief Executive Officer of the Corporation. The President shall be empowered to sign and execute contracts as required by law or authorized by resolution of the Board. The President shall work in partnership with the staff to implement the Mission of the School. The President shall report to the board the overall state of the school, current initiatives, federal state and district policies and their impact to the school, deadlines and other information pertinent to the operation of the school, and is responsible for the planning all meetings in regards to all current and future academic, financial, legal and operational obligations incurred. The President shall represent the Pikes Peak School of Expeditionary Learning with the School District.

Section 6.3 **Vice-President** The Vice-President shall have all the powers and perform all the duties of the President in the absence or disability of the President. The Vice-President shall perform such other duties as from time-to-time may be assigned to him or her by the President or the Board of Directors.

Section 6.4 **Secretary** The Secretary shall record the votes and keep the full minutes of all meeting and proceedings of the Board of Directors, shall serve timely notice of all meetings, elections, and other proceedings in accordance with the provisions of these bylaws or as required by law, and perform such other duties as may be assigned by the President or by the Board of Directors.

Section 6.5 **Treasurer** The Treasurer, shall have oversight over all school financial matters. These include: receiving and depositing, in appropriate bank accounts approved by the Board of Directors, all funds received from the School District; depositing contributions, gifts, grants, bequests and other such funds in approved bank accounts; disbursing such funds as directed by resolution of the Board of Directors; keeping proper books of account; reporting the financial condition of The Pikes Peak School of Expeditionary Learning at Board of Directors' meetings; causing an annual financial audit and other audits as required by the Contract; preparing and presenting an annual budget to the Board of Directors for approval and overseeing such other duties as may be assigned by the President or by the Board of Directors.

Article VII

Committees to the Board of Directors



PIKES PEAK

SCHOOL OF EXPEDITIONARY LEARNING

Section 7.1 **Committees** The committees of the Board of Directors shall include both standing committees and other committees which may be organized by the Board of Directors from time to time.

Section 7.1.1 **Standing Committees** the standing committees of the Board of Directors are:

- a) The School Accountability and Advisory Committee
- b) The Finance Committee

Section 7.1.2 **Organization of Committees** The School Accountability and Advisory Committee shall consist of membership based on Colorado Statutes. The Finance Committee shall consist of the Treasurer, a School Administrator, and other persons responsible for the finances of the school, such as an accountant.

Section 7.1.3 **Terms of Committees** Committee terms shall expire in September, at a date chosen by resolution of the Board of Directors

Section 7.1.4 **Vacancies** Committee vacancies shall be filled by appointment by the respective committee chair, and shall be confirmed at the next regular meeting of the Board of Directors by a majority vote of the Board of Directors. The existence of a vacancy on the committee does not limit the power of the committee in any way; should a committee have no members or not be formed, the duties and responsibility of that committee fall on the Board of Directors as a whole.

Section 7.1.5 **Removal** A committee member may be removed from the committee, with or without cause by a quorum vote of the Board of Directors.

Section 7.1.6 **Resignation** A committee member may resign by notifying the committee chair in writing.

Section 7.1.7 **Composition** Membership in multiple committees shall be allowed only when there are no candidates available for that committee who are not members of other committees.

Section 7.2 **Instruction and Responsibility** Each committee shall limit its considerations to the specific tasks assigned to it by the Board of Directors by resolution or other authority establishing the particular committee. Each committee shall be clearly instructed as to the length of time each member is being asked to serve; the service the Board of Directors wishes the committee to render, the extent and limitations of responsibility; the resources the Board of Directors shall provide; and the approximate dates on which the Board of Directors wishes to receive reports and recommendations. The Board of Directors shall maintain and approve a register of members of each committee.

Section 7.3 **Committee Powers and Prerogatives** All recommendations of a standing committee shall be submitted to the Board of Directors for official action, unless otherwise provided for these bylaws. In the event of a tie, the President shall have the final authority regarding any and all decisions affecting committees.

Article VIII - School Accountability and Advisory Committee



PIKES PEAK

SCHOOL OF EXPEDITIONARY LEARNING

Section 8.1 **Purpose** The purpose of the School Accountability and Advisory Committee shall be to fulfill the duties set forth by the Colorado Revised Statutes. These duties may include recommendations on the financial priorities of the school, support in the creation of an improvement plan for the school, and other duties outlined by the Colorado Revised Statutes. Membership shall conform to the standards set forth by these same standards. The chair, or chair designee, may represent the school on the District Accountability Committee and shall also be responsible for the nomination process of candidates to the Board of Directors and the oversight of the election of Directors as outlined in Article IV of these Bylaws, as well as for duties assigned in relation to amending the Bylaws as specified in Article XIII.

Article IX - The Principal

Section 9.1 **The Principal** The Principal shall act as the administrative head of the school responsible to the Board of Directors. The Principal shall assign and supervise the roles and duties of the teachers and staff. The Principal shall be responsible for teacher performance and quality of instruction. At all times, the principal shall maintain clear communication with the Board of Directors. Specific duties assigned to the Principal shall be promulgated in a separate directive. The Principal shall serve as an at will employee. The Board of Directors may remove the Principal at a regular or special meeting of the Board by majority both of the directors then in office, but by not less than the affirmative vote of four (4) directors.

Article X - Contracts, Loans, etc.

Section 10.1 **Contracts, Loans, etc.** The Board of Directors, except as otherwise provided in these Bylaws, may authorize any officer or officers or agents of the Corporation to enter into any contract or execute and deliver any instrument in the name and on behalf of the Corporation. Such authority may be general or confined to specific instances, and unless so authorized by the Board of Directors, no officer, agent or employee shall have any power or authority to bind the Corporation by any contract or engagement or to pledge its credit for any purpose or to any amount. Authorization shall be written.

In order to preserve the integrity of at-will employee contracts, no cause shall ever be stated for the separation of any employee under such a contract.

Section 10.2 **Loans** No loan shall be contracted for or on behalf of the Corporation, and no negotiable papers shall be issued in its name, unless authorized by the Board of Directors. When so authorized, the authorized officer or agent for the Corporation may effect loans and advances at any time for either Corporation, and for such loans and advances, may make, execute and deliver promissory notes or other evidences of indebtedness of the Corporation; and when authorized as security for the payment of any and all liens, advances, indebtedness and liabilities of the Corporation may mortgage, pledge, hypothecate or transfer any real or personal property at any time held by the Corporation, and to that end execute instruments of mortgage or pledge or otherwise transfer said property. Such authority may be General or confined to specific instances.

Article XI - Books and Records



PIKES PEAK

SCHOOL OF EXPEDITIONARY LEARNING

Section 11.1 **Books and Records** The school shall keep at its office correct records, policies, procedures, minutes of the proceedings of the Board of Directors, and a directory giving the names and contact information of the Directors and Committee membership. The Secretary of the Board shall be responsible for making sure such records are properly stored and will provide the most current copies to board members of all documentation governing the operation of the School. This includes Federal, State, District, and School documentation.

Article XII - Construction

Section 12.1 **Construction** The feminine gender, where appearing in these bylaws, shall be deemed to include the masculine gender and the singular shall be deemed to include the plural unless the context indicates to the contrary.

Article XIII - Amending the Bylaws

Section 13.1 **General** These bylaws may be amended, altered or repealed and new bylaws may be adopted; any such process is referred to as amending. Amendments may be made via Board action as described in 13.3, or via Eligible Voter Action as described in section 13.4. Any such amendments shall be made pursuant to the provisions of this Article, by the procedures described in Section 13.2, and shall supersede the older bylaws once adopted.

Section 13.2 **Procedure** The procedure for amending these bylaws is as follows.

Section 13.2.1 **Proposal** Any proposed amendment to these bylaws must be made at a meeting of the Board of Directors meeting where an amendment is proposed, the Secretary of the Board of Directors shall assign the School Accountability and Advisory Committee to review the amendment. Only eligible voters and members of the Board of Directors may propose amendments.

Section 13.2.2 **Review** Once assigned, the SAAC shall review the proposed amendment for any conflicts described in Article XIV, and compile a list of advantages and disadvantages of the proposed amendment. The SAAC shall be allowed to develop an alternative amendment to solve the same problem. Within 30 days of the original proposal of the amendment, the SAAC shall report to the Board of Directors all conflicts, the advantages and disadvantages of both the proposed amendment and any alternative versions that the SAAC wishes to propose. The report may be delivered either inside or outside of a meeting of that Board of Directors, but the report shall be part of the public records of the Board of Directors.

Section 13.2.3 **Notification** Once the SAAC has issued its report, the Secretary of the Board of Directors shall:

- Add an item to the agenda for the purpose of voting on the proposed amendment, such that the vote will occur within thirty (30) days of the report being issued, calling a special meeting if necessary to meet this requirement.
- Notify all eligible voters at least fourteen (14) days of the date, time, and location of the meeting where the proposed amendment will be voted on and the text of the amendment and the original.



PIKES PEAK

SCHOOL OF EXPEDITIONARY LEARNING

Section 13.2.4 Voting Any proposed amendment, that follows the procedure described above, and receives a majority vote of the Board of Directors at the meeting referred to in Section 13.2.3a shall be considered adopted but will not be in effect until 14 days have passed with no rescission requested in those 14 days, as described in Section 13.2.5. If the amendment fails to receive a majority vote of the Board of Directors, the eligible Voters may pursue adopting the amendment as provided for in Sections 13.2.8 and 13.3

Section 13.2.5 Rescission Request After an amendment is adopted, there is a 14 day time period where a rescission may be requested by the Eligible Voters. To request a rescission, a petition to that effect must be signed by 30% of the Eligible Voters and delivered to the Secretary of the Board of Directors within 14 days of the adoption of the amendment. Should such a rescission be requested, the Board of Directors shall call for and schedule a rescission ballot vote within six (6) weeks of the original approval of the amendment.

Section 13.2.6 Rescission A rescission shall be effected if a majority of the Eligible Voters vote for the amendment's rescission on the ballot described in Section 13.2.5, and in such case the amendment shall be rescinded and of no force and effect. Should less than a majority of Eligible Voters vote to rescind, the amendment shall be effective immediately following the vote.

Section 13.2.7 Adoption Should no rescission be requested within 14 days of the Board of Directors' adoption of the proposal, the amendment shall be in full effect.

Section 13.2.8 Referral to Eligible Voters In the event that a request for a change to these bylaws does not receive the requisite majority vote of the Board of Directors as described above, the request may be submitted to the Eligible Voters for a ballot vote upon the affirmation vote to do so by a majority of the Directors then in office at the same meeting of that Board of Directors. Any such proposed change to these bylaws submitted to the Eligible Voters for ballot vote shall be approved upon the affirmative vote of two-thirds of the Eligible Voters.

Section 13.3 Eligible Voter Action If any change to the bylaws proposed by an Eligible Voter is rejected by the Board of Directors and the Board does not subsequently submit the request to a ballot vote of the Eligible Voters, a valid petition (as described in Section 13.3.1) containing the signatures of fifty-one percent (51%) of Eligible Voters, which signatures must be collected within thirty (30) days of the Board of Directors rejection of such proposed change and which requests that such proposed change be submitted to a vote of the Eligible Voters, shall cause the proposed change to be placed on the next ballot vote. Any such petition shall be submitted to the SAAC within such thirty (30) day period following rejection of the request by the Board of Directors. The SAAC shall be responsible for validating the signatures on such petition and reporting back to the Board of Directors within thirty (30) days of receipt of the petition. If the petition is validated by the SAAC, the ballot vote shall take place on the date of and concurrent with the next regularly scheduled annual Board of Directors elections unless the Board, in its sole and absolute discretion, schedules an earlier special ballot vote. Any such proposed change to these bylaws so submitted to the eligible voters for a ballot vote shall be approved upon the affirmative vote of two-thirds of the eligible voters.

Section 13.3.1 A valid petition shall:



PIKES PEAK

SCHOOL OF EXPEDITIONARY LEARNING

- Be registered with the Secretary of the Board of Directors, who shall issue to the sponsor a dated petition form of a format approved by the Board within 14 days of the date requested by the sponsor.
- Contain the new bylaw wording requested together with the current bylaw wording if this is applicable.
- Contain the pro arguments of the sponsor and the con arguments compiled by the Board of Directors.
- Be returned to the Secretary of the Board of Directors within 30 days of the date of issue, and contain the date of return.
- Include the wording: We, the undersigned, will vote for the following request to amend the bylaws of the Pikes Peak School of Expeditionary Learning.
- Contain the full names, addresses and signatures of the petitioners who must be eligible voters as defined by the bylaws of the Pikes Peak School of Expeditionary Learning.
- Signed by at least 51% of these eligible voters.
- Have the names validated by the School Accountability and Advisory Committee following the return to the Secretary of the Board of Directors.
- Not be in conflict, as described in Article XIV.

Article XIV - Conflict

Section 14.1 **Conflict with Other Documents** The charter of the Pikes Peak School of Expeditionary Learning, the Contract with Falcon School District 49, Colorado State Law, and Federal Law all take precedence over these bylaws in the event that there is a conflict, and any such conflict renders that portion of the bylaws of no force and no effect, but all other portions of the bylaws remain in effect.

Section 14.2 **Self-conflict** In the event that one section of the bylaws is in conflict with another section of the bylaws, neither section is of any force or effect.

Section 14.3 **Conflict resolution** Upon the discovery of any conflict described in Section 14.2 or Section 14.2, the Board of Directors within thirty (30) days of the School Accountability and Advisory Committee shall propose a resolution to the conflict according to the procedure described in Article XIII.

Article XV - Adoption

The above Articles were adopted as the bylaws of the Pikes Peak School of Expeditionary Learning at a Board of Directors meeting held for this purpose on November 9, 2004. Bylaws were revised February, 2014.

Attest:
(List of Board Members)

Appendix A



PIKES PEAK

SCHOOL OF EXPEDITIONARY LEARNING

List of Current Directors can be obtained at www.ppsel.org or from the Main Office.